IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO: 79-837

SID J. WHITE MAY 18 1997 CLERK, SUPREME COURT By. Chief Deputy Clerk

W.R. GRACE & CO. - CONN.

Defendant/Petitioner,

v.

a

a

GARLAND P. PARLIER and MARIE W. PARLIER, his wife,

Plaintiff/Respondent.

PETITIONER, W. R. GRACE'S, BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

JONATHAN C. HOLLINGSHEAD, ESQ. SUSAN B. COLLINGWOOD, ESQ. Fisher, Rushmer, Werrenrath, Keiner, Wack & Dickson, P.A. Fla. Bar #307726; 784273 Post Office Box 712 Orlando, FL 32802-0712 407/843-2111 Attorneys for W. R. Grace & Co.-Conn.

#

## STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Plaintiffs in 11 cases filed complaints for personal injury arising out of alleged asbestos exposure against 20 named defendants on December 14 and 15, 1987. Eighteen defendants including Petitioner, W. R. GRACE & CO. - CONN ["hereinafter GRACE"] were ultimately served with process between July and September of **1990**.

In various manners, all defendants raised plaintiffs' failure to timely serve Defendants in compliance with Rule 1.070(j) of the Florida Rules of Civil Procedure. Plaintiffs argued Rule 1.070(j) did not apply to their cases because their cases were filed prior to the effective date of the rule and also argued their service on defendants "cured" their prior untimely failure to serve. The trial court rejected both of these contentions and dismissed plaintiffs' actions on November 29, 1990.

All plaintiffs took separate appeals of the dismissal of their complaints. Pursuant to a stipulated Motion for Consolidation, the cases were consolidated at the Fifth District Court of Appeals.

On March 13, **1992**, the Fifth District Court of Appeals issued its opinion in this matter [A.1-21, which became final when various motions for rehearing and certification were denied on April 23, **1992.** 

1

## NOTICE OF PENDENCY OF SAME ISSUE

a

Petitioner, GRACE believes the issue raised in this appeal is presently pending on another Petition for Discretionary Review of the decision of the Second District Court of Appeals in <u>King v.</u> <u>Pearlstein</u> [17 F.L.W. D269, (Fla. 2d DCA, January 15, 1992)]. The Florida Supreme Court case numbers for that appeal are 79529 and 79530.

### **ARGUMENT**

The decision of the Fifth District Court of Appeal in this case and the Second District Court of Appeal in <u>King</u> <u>v. Pearlstein</u>, 17 F.L.W. D269 (Fla. 2d DCA, January 15, 1992) held that Rule 1.070(j) does not apply to cases filed prior to the effective date of the Rule. These cases expressly and directly conflict with the decisions of the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Berdeaux v. Eagle-Picher Industries, Inc.</u>, 575 So.2d 1295 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1990) and the Fourth District Court of Appeal in <u>Hill</u> <u>v. Hammerman</u>, [583 So.2d 368 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991)], holding that Rule 1.070(j) does apply to cases filed prior to the effective date of the Rule. Consequently, this court has jurisdiction and should accept these cases for review.

The absolute conflict existing within the District Courts of Appeal on the applicability of Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j) to cases filed prior to the Rule's effective date is obvious from a cursory review of the decision in this case and the decision reached by the Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Berdeaux</u> V. Eagle-Picher Industries, Inc., 575 So.2d 1295 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1990). This case and the <u>Berdeaux</u> case are factually indistinguishable, yet come to opposite legal conclusions. Both cases involved multiple asbestos-litigation complaints and turn on the fact that the complaints were filed prior to the effective date of the rule. Consequently, the legal holdings of these two cases are in direct conflict with each other.

This case arose when 11 asbestos-litigation plaintiffs filed lawsuits against various defendants, which were dismissed by the trial court based on Rule 1.070(j), <u>Fla.R.Civ.P.</u> The Fifth District's opinion makes note of the fact that plaintiffs' lawsuits were filed in 1987 (prior to the effective date of Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j)). The opinion went on to reverse the

3

a

а

dismissal of these lawsuits, citing as its authority <u>Partin v.</u> <u>Flagler Hospital, Inc.</u>, 581 So.2d 240 (Fla. 5th DCA **1991)** and <u>King</u> <u>v. Pearlstein</u>, **17** F.L.W. D269 [\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ So.2d \_\_\_\_] (Fla. 2d DCA, January **15**, 1992).

Partin was the **previous** appellate decision of the Fifth District which held "that Rule 1.070(j) is not applicable to cases filed prior to January 1, 1989, the effective date of that rule." 581 So.2d at 242. Since the lawsuit in the <u>Partin</u> case had been filed prior to January 1, 1989, the Fifth District Court of Appeals held that Rule 1.070(j) did not apply and the trial court's dismissal of the case was reversed. The opinion in the instant case is consistent with the <u>Partin</u> ruling and reverses dismissal of lawsuits filed prior to January 1, 1989.

The instant opinion also cites the <u>King</u> matter as additional authority. The Second District Court of Appeal in <u>King</u> reversed the dismissal of a complaint pursuant to Rule **1.070(j)** stating:

We agree with the reasoning expressed by our sister court in <u>Partin V. Flasler Hospital, Inc.</u> [citation omitted], and hold that Rule 1.070(j) does not apply to cases pending prior to January 1, 1989.

Consequently, the holding of the <u>King</u> decision is also based on the conclusion that Rule 1.070 (j) should not apply to cases filed prior to the effective date. [It is GRACE's understanding that a petition seeking discretionary review by this Court has been filed in the <u>King</u> matter, but not yet ruled upon by the Court in cases numbered **79529** and **79530.1** 

However, in direct conflict with this case, <u>Partin v. Flasler</u> <u>Hospital, Inc.</u> and <u>King v. Pearlstein</u>, the Third District Court of

4

a

Appeal has held that Rule 1.070(j) can and should be applied retroactively to actions which were pending on January 1, 1989. Berdeaux v. Eagle-Picher Industries, Inc., 575 So. 2d 1295 (Fla. 3rd In <u>Berdeaux</u>, multiple asbestos-litigation plaintiffs DCA 1990). filed lawsuits between January 1987 and March 1988. Id. at 1295. The various defendants in the lawsuits remained unserved until more than 120 days after the effective date of Rule 1.070(j), Id. The trial court applied Rule 1.070(j) and dismissed all complaints against all defendants. Although the plaintiffs argued that Rule 1.070(j) should not be applied to cases already pending on the effective date of the rule, the court declined to construe the rule in this manner. Instead, the Third District Court of Appeal held the rule was applicable to cases pending as of the effective date but that in such cases the plaintiffs were limited to 120 days from the effective date of the rule in which to serve the defendants. <u>Id</u>. at 1296.

The Third District Court of Appeal in <u>Berdeaux</u> proceeded to reverse the dismissal of the complaints against eight of the nine defendants, holding that service on these defendants prior to the filing of the motion to dismiss was sufficient to avoid application of Rule 1.070(j). This holding of the <u>Berdeaux</u> has been specifically considered and rejected by the Fifth District Court of Appeal in <u>Partin</u>. However, this additional holding of <u>Berdeaux</u> was not applicable to one defendant (Flintkote) since service of process was not ever effected upon that defendant. Consequently, with regard to the defendant "Flintokote," the <u>Berdeaux</u> decision held

5

that Rule 1.070 (j)<u>was</u> <u>applicable</u> to cases pending as of January 1, **1989.** Thus, the present case is factually on all fours with the situation in <u>Berdeaux</u>, yet the Courts have formed directly contrary rules of law.

As was the case in **Berdeaux**, the Fourth District Court of Appeal in Hill v. Hammerman, [583 So.2d 368 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991)] has effectively applied Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j) to a lawsuit filed prior to January 1, 1989, and has affirmed dismissal of the complaint. The opinion in <u>Hill</u> is a **per** curiam affirmance on the authority of <u>Hernandez v. Page</u>, 580 So.2d 793 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1991) and Morales v. Sperry Rand Corp., 578 So.2d 1143 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991). Therefore, the main body of the opinion does not demonstrate Rule 1.070(j) is being applied to a cause of action filed prior to January 1, 1989. However, the concurring opinion of Judge Glickstein sets forth the fact that the case before the appellate court involved Complaints filed prior to 1989, similar to the factual circumstances of <u>Berdeaux</u>. It is clear from Judge Glickstein's concurrence that the majority of the Court had rejected without comment appellant's argument that Rule 1.070(j) should only relate to causes of action filed after January 1, 1989. Id. at 369. Judge Glickstein wrote only to emphasize his belief in the correctness of that result. Consequently, the action of the Fourth District Court of Appeal conflicts with the instant holding, even if the text of the majority opinion **does** not directly state this.

6

a

Having the relevant facts of a case set forth in a concurring opinion, rather than in the body of the main opinion should not preclude the <u>Hill</u> case from demonstrating additional conflict sufficient to invoke this Court's jurisdiction. Thus, the instant situation is wholly distinguishable from that found in <u>Reaves v.</u> <u>State</u>. 485 So.2d 829 (Fla. 1986). In Reaves, this Court found that conflict between District Courts of Appeal could not be created by statements of "fact" made in a dissenting opinion, when those statements conflicted with the facts set forth by the majority opinion. In the <u>Hill</u> case, there are no <u>conflicting</u> facts set forth in Judge Glickstein's concurring opinion; he merely sets forth the facts on which the majority's ruling was based.

The <u>Hill</u> opinion, further, does not contain only **a** bald assertion of conflict, such as was found to be insufficient in <u>Continental Video Corp. v. Honeywell.</u> Inc., 456 So.2d 892 (Fla. 1984). Judge Glickstein, in fact, does not assert conflict (which may not have been apparent at the time of his opinion), but does provide the facts upon which that Court ruled. Because the action taken by the Fourth District Court of Appeal in <u>Hill</u> is in accord with the Third District's decision in Berdeaux, but directly conflicts with the rulings of the Second and Fifth Districts, conflict exists which should be resolved by this Court.

The conflicting decisions of the District Courts of Appeal have resulted in Plaintiffs with lawsuits in the Third and Fourth Districts being required to timely serve their lawsuits or suffer losing their actions, while similarly situated Plaintiffs in the

7

Second and Fifth District may wait indefinitely before they finally serve their lawsuit on a Defendant. This conflict creates inequity as between similarly situated litigants which depends on a whim of geography within the state. Florida Rules of Civil Procedure apply statewide. Fla.R.Civ.P. 1.010. Consequently, the Florida Supreme Court should accept jurisdiction to resolve this conflict and establish uniformity among the courts of this state in the interpretation of Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j).

a

### CONCLUSION

Since the decision of the Third and Fourth District Courts of Appeal directly conflict with the holdings of the Fifth District Court of Appeal's opinion in the instant case and the Second District concerning the interpretation and application of Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j), it is requested that W. R. GRACE's Petition for Review be granted and the Florida Supreme Court resolve the conflict between the circuit courts of appeal.