FILED

JUN 28 1992

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By\_\_\_\_\_Chief Deplify Clerk

IN THE SUPREME COURT

OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 79,837

W.R. GRACE & CO. - CONN.

Defendant/Petitioner,

vs.

GARLAND P. PARLIER and MARIE W. PARLIER, his wife, et al.,

Plaintiffs/Respondents.

RESPONDENTS' BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

ROBLES & GONZALEZ Suite 900, One Bayfront Plaza 100 South Biscayne Boulevard Miami, Florida 33131 -and-DANIELS & TALISMAN, P.A. Suite 2401, New World Tower 100 N. Biscayne Boulevard Miami, Florida 33132 (305) 381-7720

Attorneys for Respondents.

#

### STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Alleging that conflict certiorari jurisdiction exists, petitioners seek review of the Fifth District's decision below in <u>Parlier v. Eagle-Picher Industries, Inc.</u>, 596 So.2d 1125 (Fla. 5th DCA 1992). Respondents contend that no express conflict exists and that the petitions should be denied.

The decision sought to be reviewed holds that Rule 1.070(j), Fla,R,Civ,P,, may not be applied to cases pending on its effective date. The opinion, in its entirety, states:

In 1987 appellants in this consolidated action filed suit for damages alleging asbestos related injuries. Service was not effected within 120 days from the filings nor within 120 days from the effective date of Florida Rules of Civil Procedure 1.070(j).

The trial court held that Rule 1.070(j) was applicable to these cases and, since appellants had failed to show good cause for their noncompliance with the 120 day rule, the actions were dismissed with prejudice.

We reverse. <u>Partin v. Flaqler Hospital,</u> <u>Inc.</u>, 581 So.2d **240** (Fla. 5th DCA 1991). <u>Accord King v. Pearlstein</u>, 592 So.2d 1176 (Fla. 1992).

596 So,2d at 1125.

Petitioners now seek review in this Court based on express and direct conflict jurisdiction.

SUITE 2401 NEW WORLD TOWER, 100 NORTH BISCAYNE BOULEVARD. MIAMI, FL 33132-2513 . TEL. ( 305 B81-7720

### II.

#### JURISDICTIONAL ISSUE

Petitioners contend that the decision below expressly and directly conflicts with the following decisions:

- 1. <u>Berdeaux v. Eagle-Picher Industries, Inc.</u>, 575 So.2d 295 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990).
- 2. <u>Hill v. Hammerman</u>, 583 So.2d 368 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991) (concurring opinion).

Respondents contend that no such conflict exists and that the petitions should be denied.

# III.

## SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

No conflict exists between the decision below and the Third District's opinion in <u>Berdeaux</u>. The latter opinion has been disapproved by this Court and can no longer serve as the basis for conflict jurisdiction. Nor is there any express conflict with the Fourth District's opinion in <u>Hill</u>, since no such conflict appears within the four corners of the <u>Hill</u> majority opinion.

#### IV.

#### **ARGUMENT**

For the reasons which follow, it is respectfully submitted that review should be denied.

## A. <u>There is No Conflict with the Third District's Decision in</u> <u>Berdeaux Which This Court Has Disapproved</u>.

The Third District's decision in <u>Berdeaux V. Eagle-Picher</u> <u>Industries, Inc.</u>, 575 So.2d 1295 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990), upon which petitioners rely for conflict jurisdiction, consists of **two** holdings: (1) dismissal is not appropriate if service of process is effected before a motion to dismiss predicated on noncompliance with Rule 1.070(j) is filed; and (2) Rule 1.070(j) applies to cases pending on the rule's effective date.

In <u>Morales V. Sperry Rand Corp.</u>, 17 F.L.W. 5348 (Fla. June 11, 1992), this Court disapproved <u>Berdeaux</u>, stating:

At issue are the consequences of failing to obtain service of process within 120 days of **the** filing of a complaint as required by Florida Rule of Civil Procedure 1.070(j) when no good cause for this failure is demonstrated. In <u>Morales</u> the district court held that rule 1.070(j) required dismissal. Whereas, <u>Berdeaux</u> held that dismissal is not in order if service of process is effected before a motion to dismiss predicated on noncompliance with rule 1.070(j) is filed. We adopt <u>Morales</u> and disapprove <u>Berdeaux</u>.

This Court's opinion in <u>Morales</u> does not distinguish between the two holdings in <u>Berdeaux</u>. Rather, the <u>Morales</u> opinion merely states that <u>Berdeaux</u> is disapproved.

As far as the precedential status of <u>Berdeaux</u> is concerned, there are now two possibilities in view of <u>Morales</u>. First, the

-4-

possibility exists that the <u>Berdeaux</u> decision is completely extinguished and no longer functions as authority in any **way**. Under such circumstances, it certainly does not survive as a basis for conflict jurisdiction. <u>Cf</u>. <u>Bailey v. Hough</u>, 441 So.2d 614 (Fla. 1983).

Secondly, it is possible that <u>Morales</u> only extinguishes the part of <u>Berdeaux</u> concerning the effect of serving process before a motion to dismiss citing Rule 1.070(j) is filed. Under this scenario, <u>Morales</u> does not completely obliterate the <u>Berdeaux</u> holding concerning the applicability of Rule 1.070(j) to cases pending on its effective date. However, that holding survives, at most, as persuasive legal reasoning and not as binding precedential authority. <u>Cf. Colding v. Herzog</u>, 467 So.2d 980, 982 (Fla. 1985).

In <u>Colding</u>, <u>supra</u>, a similar situation **was** presented. This Court had quashed the district court's opinion in <u>Department of</u> <u>Revenue v. Markham</u>, 381 So.2d 1101 (Fla. 1st DCA 1979) on the ground of lack of standing without reaching the substantive ad valorem taxation addressed in the district court's opinion. <u>See</u> <u>Department of Revenue v. Markham</u>, 396 So.2d 1120, 1121 (Fla. 1981). The issue in <u>Colding</u> was whether the quashed district court opinion in <u>Markham</u> had any precedential value with regard to its holding on the taxation issue. This Court held that <u>Markham</u> no longer had any binding precedential value, stating:

> Because of its disposition on a standing issue, this Court neither rejected nor disapproved the legal analysis in the district court's <u>Markham</u> decision. <u>The district court's</u> <u>opinion is not precedent</u>, but its analysis may

> > -5-

<u>nevertheless be considered</u> by this Court in resolving the instant **case**.

467 So.2d at 982 (emphasis supplied).

Thus, at the very least, <u>Morales</u> has deprived the Third District's <u>Berdeaux</u> opinion of its binding precedential value on the question of whether Rule 1.070(j) may be applied to cases pending on its effective date. Accordingly, there is no longer any express and direct conflict between the instant case and <u>Berdeaux</u>. A district court holding which may properly be disregarded even within that district can hardly serve as the basis for conflict jurisdiction in this Court.

Petitioners also contend that the citation in the district court's opinion below to the Second District's decision in <u>King v.</u> <u>Pearlstein</u>, 592 So.2d 1176 (Fla. 1992) supports conflict jurisdiction herein. The basis for petitioners' contention is that this Court has accepted jurisdiction to review <u>King</u> and therefore it would be unfair to deny petitioners the same treatment as the petitioner in <u>King</u>. <u>See State v. Lofton</u>, 534 So.2d 1148 (Fla. 1988); Jollie v. State, 405 So.2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

However, this Court chose to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction in <u>King</u> prior to its decision in <u>Morales</u> disapproving <u>Berdeaux</u>. Without <u>Berdeaux</u> as a predicate for inter-district conflict, respondents seriously doubt that this Court would have accepted jurisdiction in <u>King</u>. Thus, this Court may decline to exercise its jurisdiction in this case without contravening the rule set forth in <u>Lofton</u> and <u>Jollie</u>.

## -6-

Moreover, this is not a situation, as was the case in <u>Lofton</u> and <u>Jollie</u>, in which a district court of appeal disposed of multiple cases involving the same legal issue by authoring an opinion in one case and summarily referencing **that** opinion in **all** of **the others. In such a** situation, it would be unfair for **this** Court **to** accept jurisdiction in the one case in which an opinion was written and to deny jurisdiction in all of the other cases. <u>See Jollie</u>, **405** So.2d at **420**.

In the instant case, the Fifth District's opinion stands on its own for purposes of assessing conflict jurisdiction because it sets forth the relevant facts and legal support for its holding. Thus, there is no danger herein of affording disparate treatment to similarly situated petitioners.

## B. <u>No Express Conflict Exists with the Fourth District's Decision</u> <u>in Hill Based on Facts set Forth in the Concurring Opinion</u>.

Petitioners also assert that conflict exists between the decision below and the Fourth District's decision in <u>Hill v.</u> <u>Hammerman</u>, 583 **So.2d 368** (Fla. 4th DCA 1991). At the same time, petitioners acknowledge that such conflict only appears from the **facts** set forth in the concurring opinion in <u>Hill</u>.

It is well settled that inter-district conflict must appear from the four corners of the majority opinions in question in order to support conflict jurisdiction in this Court. <u>Reaves V. State</u>, **485 So.2d 829, 830 (Fla. 1986);** <u>Jenkins V. State</u>, 385 So.2d 1356, 1359 (Fla. **1980);** <u>Continental Video Corp. V. Honeywell, Inc.</u>, **456** So.2d **892, 893 (Fla. 1984);** <u>Department of Health and Rehabilitative</u>

-7-

Services v. National Adoption Counseling Service, Inc., 498 So.2d 888, 889 (Fla. 1986).

Here, the Fourth District's majority opinion in <u>Hill</u> is merely a <u>per curiam</u> affirmance citing as authority <u>Hernandez v. Page</u>, 580 So.2d 793 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991) and <u>Morales v. Sperry Rand Corp.</u>, 578 So.2d 1143 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991). Neither <u>Hernandez</u> nor <u>Morales</u> involves the issue of whether Rule 1.070(j) may be applied to pending cases -- in both cases, the complaints were filed after the effective date of the rule. Thus, the majority opinion in <u>Hill</u> in no way reflects the express conflict **required** to invoke this Court's jurisdiction.

It is true that the concurring opinion in <u>Hill</u> discusses the application of Rule 1.070(j) to complaints filed prior to January 1, 1989. However, concurring opinions do not represent precedential authority. <u>Dunn v. State</u>, 454 So.2d 641, **642** (Fla. 5th DCA 1984). Nor do facts or statements of law set forth in a concurring opinion create a predicate for conflict jurisdiction in this Court. <u>Reaves</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Jenkins</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>Continental Video</u> <u>Corp.</u>, <u>supra</u>.

– a –

### CONCLUSION

IV.

It is respectfully submitted that no express conflict exists and that the petitions should be denied.